
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Property Investment Board 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 19 JULY 2017 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Alastair Moss (Chairman) 

Deputy Tom Sleigh (Deputy Chairman) 
Chris Boden 
Sir Mark Boleat 
Deputy Keith Bottomley 
Deputy Michael Cassidy 
John Chapman 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Christopher Hill 
Dhruv Patel 
Deputy Philip Woodhouse 
Tony Joyce (Co-Opted) 
David Brooks Wilson (Co-Opted) 
Alderman Peter Hewitt (Co-Opted) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Alistair MacLellan 

alistair.maclellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To approve the public minutes and non-public summary of meeting held on 21 June 

2017.  
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
4. MIPIM PROPERTY CONFERENCE 2017 
 Joint Report of the City Surveyor and the Director of the Built Environment.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
5. BEECH STREET PROPERTY USES - UPDATE REPORT 
 Joint Report of the City Surveyor and the Headmistress of the City of London School 

for Girls.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 11 - 14) 

 
6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 
7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act. 
 
 
 

 For Decision 
Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 

 
9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To approve the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2017.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 20) 

 



 

3 
 

ALL ESTATES 
 

10. CROSSRAIL SUBSOIL ACQUISITIONS - ALL ESTATES EXCLUDING BARBICAN 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 21 - 26) 

 
11. CITY SURVEYOR REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT 2016-17 
 Report of the City Surveyor and the Chamberlain.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 27 - 34) 

 
12. VACANT ACCOMMODATION UPDATE AS AT 1 JUNE 2017 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 35 - 44) 

 
13. QUARTERLY DELEGATED AUTHORITIES UPDATE -  1ST APRIL 2017 TO 30TH 

JUNE 2017 - CITY FUND, CITY'S ESTATE & BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 45 - 60) 

 
14. CITY FUND, CITY'S ESTATE AND BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES - PERFORMANCE 

MONITORING TO 31 MARCH 2017 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 61 - 66) 

 
15. CITY FUND AND BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES - FINSBURY CIRCUS: CROSSRAIL 

ISSUE REPORT 
 Joint Report of the Director of Open Spaces, City Surveyor and Comptroller and City 

Solicitor.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 67 - 76) 

 
16. PROJECT MANAGEMENT EVENT - KEY THEMES FOR ORGANISATIONAL 

ACTION 
 Report of the Assistant Town Clerk & Cultural Hub Director.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 77 - 80) 

 
 
 



 

 

17. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN BETWEEN MEETINGS 
 Report of the Town Clerk.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 81 - 84) 

 
18. DELEGATIONS SOUGHT DURING THE SUMMER RECESS - ASSET 

MANAGEMENT & DEVELOPMENT 
 The City Surveyor to be heard.  

 
 For Decision 

CITY’S ESTATE 
 
19. 123/124 NEW BOND STREET- REDEVELOPMENT BEHIND A RETAINED 

FAÇADE (CITY'S ESTATE) 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 85 - 88) 

 
20. CITY'S ESTATE - RENT REVIEW REPORT - WHOLE 16-24 BREWERY ROAD, N7 

RENT REVIEW - 25TH MARCH 2016 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 89 - 94) 

 
21. CITY'S ESTATE LETTING REPORT - CUPOLA HOUSE, ALFRED PLACE - NEW 

LETTING 
 Report of the City Surveyor – TO FOLLOW. 

 
 For Decision 

CITY FUND ESTATE 
 
22. CITY FUND LETTING REPORT - LEASE RENEWAL, 4TH FLOOR, 15/17 ELDON 

STREET EC2M 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 95 - 102) 

 
23. CITY FUND LETTING REPORT - LEASE RENEWAL, 26-27 LEADENHALL 

MARKET EC3 - REISS LIMITED 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 103 - 108) 

 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES 
 
24. BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES - 21 LIME STREET - PURCHASE OF FREEHOLD 

DEVELOPMENT SITE: CONFIRMATION OF FINAL PRICE 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 109 - 130) 

 
25. BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES - LETTING REPORT PART 3RD FLOOR, BUILDING 3 

& 4, 1-5 LONDON WALL BUILDINGS EC2 
 Report of the City Surveyor.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 131 - 136) 

 
26. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

BOARD 
 
27. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC 
ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



PROPERTY INVESTMENT BOARD 
 

Wednesday, 21 June 2017  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Property Investment Board held at Guildhall, EC2 
on Wednesday, 21 June 2017 at 1.45 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Alastair Moss (Chairman) 
Deputy Tom Sleigh (Deputy Chairman) 
Chris Boden 
Sir Mark Boleat 
Deputy Keith Bottomley 
John Chapman 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Christopher Hill 
Dhruv Patel 
Deputy Philip Woodhouse 
Tony Joyce 
David Brooks Wilson 
 

 
Officers: 
Alistair MacLellan - Town Clerk's Department 

John James - Chamberlain's Department 

Alan Bennetts - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department 

Paul Wilkinson - City Surveyor 

Nicholas Gill - Investment Property Group Director 

Andrew Cross - City Surveyor's Department 

Tom Leathart - City Surveyor's Department 

Neil Robbie 
Robert Hutton 

- City Surveyor's Department 
- City Surveyor's Department 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES  

Apologies for absence were received from Deputy Michael Cassidy and 
Alderman Peter Hewitt.  
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations. 
 

3. MINUTES  
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2017 were approved as a correct 
record.  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were no questions. 
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was no other business. 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  
 

7. NON PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2017 were approved as 
a correct record.  
 

8. ARREARS OF RENT AS AT MARCH 2017 QUARTER DAY MINUS 1  
Members received a report of the City Surveyor regarding arrears of rent as at 
March 2017 quarter day minus one.  
 

9. BUSINESS PLAN PROGRESS 2016-19: QUARTER 4 2016/17  
Members received a report of the City Surveyor regarding Business Plan 
Progress 2016-19: Quarter 4 2016/17.  
 

10. CITY SURVEYOR'S DEPARTMENTAL QUARTERLY RISK REGISTER 
UPDATE  
Members received a quarterly update report of the City Surveyor regarding the 
City Surveyor’s Departmental Risk Register.  
 

11. CITY'S ESTATE - LETTING REPORT - FIRST FLOOR, 6-8 EASTCHEAP, 
LONDON, EC3 - LEASE RENEWAL - 9TH AUGUST 2017  
Members considered a letting report of the City Surveyor regarding First Floor, 
6-8 Eastcheap, London, EC3.  
 

12. CITY'S ESTATE - LETTING REPORT - 140 NEW BOND STREET, W1  
Members considered a letting report of the City Surveyor regarding 140 New 
Bond Street, London, W1.  
 

13. CITY'S ESTATE - LETTING REPORT - KINGS OAK HOTEL, HIGH BEACH, 
LOUGHTON, ESSEX, IG10 4AE  
Members considered a letting report of the City Surveyor regarding the Kings 
Oak Hotel, High Beach, Loughton, Essex, IG10.  
 

14. CITY'S ESTATE - TEMPLE CHAMBERS EXTERNAL REDECORATION AND 
REPAIRS  
Members considered a report of the City Surveyor regarding Temple Chambers 
external decoration and repairs.  
 
 

Page 2



14.1 Resolution of the Projects Sub Committee regarding Temple 
Chambers External Decoration  

Members received a resolution of the Projects Sub Committee regarding 
Temple Chambers external decoration and repairs.  
 

15. BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES  - LEASE RENEWAL REPORT - 2ND FLOOR, 
24-25 NEW BOND STREET, LONDON W1  
Members considered a lease renewal report of the City Surveyor regarding 2nd 
Floor, 24-25 New Bond Street, London, W1.  
 

16. BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES - POTENTIAL LEGAL ACTION TO RECOVER 
SUMS OWED BY BARTON LYLE LIMITED  
Members considered a report of the Comptroller & City Solicitor regarding 
potential legal action to recover sums owed by Barton Lyle Limited, and an 
associated resolution of the Finance Committee.  
 
16.1 Resolution of the Finance Committee re Legal Action to Recover 

Sums Owed by Barton Lyle Ltd [6 June 2017]  
Members received a resolution of the Finance Committee regarding potential 
legal action to recover sums owed by Barton Lyle Limited.  
 

17. BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES - UPDATE ON BRIDGE MASTER'S HOUSE 
PHASE II POST COMPLETION WORKS - LANDSCAPING  
Members received an update report of the City Surveyor regarding post-
completion landscaping works to Bridge Master’s House Phase II.  
 

18. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE BOARD  
There were no questions. 
 

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST 
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
Members considered a number of items of urgent business regarding 3rd Floor 
Boston House, New Broad Street; 181 Queen Victoria Street, and Crossrail.  

 
The meeting ended at 2.25 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
Contact Officer: Alistair MacLellan 
alistair.maclellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

 
Policy & Resources Committee – for decision 
 
Planning & Transportation Committee – for decision 
 
Property Investment Board – for decision 
 
 

 
06/07/2017 
 
04/07/2017 
 
19/07/2017 
 
 

Subject: 
 MIPIM property conference 2017 
 

Public 
 

Report of: The City Surveyor / Director of the Built 
Environment   

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This report informs your Committees of the City of London Corporation’s activities at 
the MIPIM property exhibition in March 2017, and seeks approval for City of London 
Corporation attendance at MIPIM 2018.  This report also identifies potential areas to 
develop to maximise the benefit of the City Corporation’s attendance at MIPIM 2018.  
If approved, this report will be followed by a further report confirming the anticipated 
programme together with a revised budget to be submitted for consideration in 
October 2017.  
 

MIPIM provided an opportunity to engage with local and international representatives 
of the property industry together with high level representatives of other London 
Boroughs and UK cities.  It provided a unique opportunity to engage in the debate 
relating to key issues and demonstrate how the City Corporation will provide 
leadership in taking forward matters of local and international importance.  The 
programme of activities was extremely well received by those who attended.  
 
Key activities from MIPIM 2017 included: 
 

 Meetings with high level representatives of property companies and stakeholders 
active in the Square Mile. 

 A new marketing campaign to promote the City to a more diverse business base, 
including the production of a new brochure  

 Research that examined the property needs of the tech sector in the Square Mile  
 Relationship building with UK cities and regions: Newcastle, Manchester, 

Liverpool, Leeds, Sheffield, the Midlands and members of the Scottish Cities 
Alliance   

 City-hosted dinners with high-level guests. 
 Participation in four panel sessions involving the Policy and Resources Chairman, 

Director of the Built Environment, and the Chief Planning Officer and Development 
Director.  

 Media interviews with The Times, City AM, Property Week and Estates Gazette     
 Promotion of the City’s existing and future building stock 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

I. That this report on MIPIM 2017 is noted. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



II. That the Policy & Resources, Planning & Transportation Committees, and the 
Property Investment Board, approve that the City of London Corporation 
should, in principle, attend MIPIM 2018.  
 

III. That a further report outlining a detailed programme of activities and costings 
for MIPIM 2018 be submitted for consideration in October 2017 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 
 
1. MIPIM is widely recognised as the world's leading and most influential event for 

the property sector. It is a global marketplace that offers the opportunity to 
connect with key players in the industry, from investors to end-users and local 
government to international corporations. This year, 24,200 delegates attended 
from 100 countries. 

2. The focus of The City Corporation’s attendance at MIPIM 2017 centred on four 
main areas of activity: 

a) Exhibition attendance – this includes supporting the City Corporation’s part 
of the larger London exhibition. The City stand was located within the wider 
London area stand and benefitted from having the City model as a major 
draw for participants 

b) To actively engage with the development industry through a seminar and 
various London Stand panel sessions to promote key messages relating to 
the wellbeing of the City as a place to invest and do business.  

c) Hosting high-level events for key investors, and other stakeholders. 

d) Relationship building with key UK regions and cities  

 
4. The core City team arrived on Tuesday afternoon departing Thursday afternoon 

so the activities listed below were achieved across an intense 48 hour period. 
 

City Corporation events and speeches:  

5. CPAT organised a seminar entitled “Tech X the City – assessing and 
accelerating the impact of the tech sector on the Square Mile”, based on 
research undertaken by Cushman and Wakefield in collaboration with KPMG, 
and jointly commissioned by the City Property Association and CPAT.  Over 100 
delegates attended the session chaired by the Chairman of the Planning and 
Transportation Committee. The report was an opportunity to highlight the impact 
of tech on the City’s occupier base and the future implications for the City as a 
world-leading business destination.     

6. The presentation examined the impact of emerging technology on the City’s 
main employment sectors: insurance, legal, banking and financial services.   It 
also looked at how tech companies view the City as a business location, and the 
value they place on different features such as buildings, public realm, 
connectivity and amenities. The session also considered the key challenges for 
the City to remain relevant to the technology sector in the future. Overall, it was 
felt that the seminar worked well and provided a great opportunity to get key 
messages across regarding the City’s changing business composition 

 

 

 

 

 Page 6

https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/business/economic-research-and-information/research-publications/Documents/tech-x-the-city-research-report.pdf


7. The Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee took part in a panel session 
organised by Estates Gazette called Smart Cities Cracked which examined the 
key measurements and requirements of a Smart City.   

8. The Director of the Built Environment chaired a specific panel session hosted on 
the London Stand titled “The City: the original co-working space” and was a 
panellist on a session titled the “London Economy: where we work”.  

9. A total of three dinners were hosted over two evenings; 

I. The key City dinner for seven high level guests  

II.  A dinner was hosted for emerging property sector talent in the 
Proptech sector who had directly contributed towards the City 
Corporation / CPA research  

III.  A dinner was hosted by the Chairman of Policy and Resources that 
included a number of representatives (Leaders and Chief Executives) 
of London Boroughs  

 
10. The Policy and Resources Chairman participated in a tour of the UK regional 

stands which included:  Newcastle, Manchester, Liverpool, Leeds, Sheffield, the 
Midlands and the Scottish Cities Alliance.  The tour was felt to be a valuable 
opportunity to engage with key officials from other UK cities which will be an 
important area for development in relation to the Chairman’s future agenda.  It has 
been suggested that future tours could also incorporate cities beyond the UK.  

Meetings: 

11. Programmed meetings were held with 18 developers, investors and agents 
actively investing in the Square Mile.  The meetings provided an opportunity to 
engage on emerging trends and issues and to reinforce existing relationships; In 
addition, there were a number of un-programmed meetings relating to 
commercially sensitive inquiries that MIPIM provides an opportunity to discuss.  

 

Media campaign and coverage: 

12. Media consultants ING were engaged to work with the City Corporation’s 
Communications team and CPAT to assist in the development and delivery of a 
new marketing campaign to promote the City to a more diverse business base, 
including the production of a new brochure together with delivering the design 
and production of the “Tech X the City” research.  The new brochure was titled 
“The City of London: The Original Co-working Space” and complemented the 
research that examined the property needs of the tech sector in the Square Mile. 
The brochure was accompanied by a Chinese information sheet highlighting 
some of the key points that were set out in the brochure, for use when engaging 
with Chinese businesses / investors. 

13. The campaign secured coverage in the Guardian, City AM, Property Week, 
Estates Gazette, MIPIM News, BDaily, Planning Resource and Co-star. The 
Tech X the City report was also referenced in the Evening Standard and 
Techworld.  A complementary social media campaign was launched on Twitter 
which resulted in 276 retweets of the “Tech X the City” and “Know the City” 
hashtags to 127,000 followers.   

 

 

 Page 7



 

 

Areas for review 

14. Following an event de-brief, it was felt that there are a number of areas where 
further consideration could be given to ensure the value of the City 
Corporation’s attendance at MIPIM 2018 is maximised, to support emerging 
strategic priorities.  These include: 
 

 How the event can better align with key work areas of the Economic 
Development Office in particular relating to engagement with the Far Eastern 
investment market such as Chinese investors and Japanese pension funds 
 

 The opportunity to partner with other organisations to deliver a single event in 
place of two dinners to maximise engagement with strategic targets from 
outside the UK. 
 

 How the City of London Stand could incorporate a more dynamic interface to 
incorporate technological innovation that would complement the City Model 
and promote the City Corporations developing programme relating to Future 
Cities. 
 

 The opportunity to hold meetings away from the London Stand where there is 
a significant level of noise disturbance arising from general activity within the 
London Stand and any associated costs to allow them to be balanced with the 
benefits. 
 

 Working with the organisers of the London Stand and the GLA to determine 
how the Stand can best deliver a more co-ordinated London message to 
participants of the event. 
 

 The theme for the research to be launched at the MIPIM seminar. 
 

 Potential costs associated with any suggested changes to the programme and 
design of the City Stand. 
 

15. The above points will be discussed in further detail and the recommendations 
and costs will be presented for approval at committee in October 2017.  
 

16. The MIPIM programme provided an opportunity to fully engage with local and 
international representatives of the property industry together with high level 
representatives of other London boroughs and UK cities.  It provided a unique 
opportunity to engage in the debate relating to key issues and demonstrate how 
the City Corporation will provide leadership in taking forward matters of local 
and international importance.  The programme of activities was extremely well 
received by those who attended. Due to value derived from the programme it is 
considered that there will be similar/better opportunities to develop a 
programme that would be beneficial to the City Corporations attendance at 
MIPIM 2018. 
 

 

 

 Page 8



MIPIM 2017 expenditure 

 
17. The costs for the attendance of MIPIM 2017 were within the approved budget. 

Depending on the outcome of an internal review by the Chairman of your 
Committees the final cost of attending MIPIM 2018 may vary from this year’s 
approved budget.  In principle commitment to attend MIPIM 2018 will allow 
detailed planning to commence and a costed programme to be developed to 
report to your Committees in October 2017.    The precise make-up of the team 
will also be reviewed to ensure that maximum value is achieved.   

Conclusion 

18. MIPIM 2017 provided the City Corporation with an excellent opportunity to 
showcase the City’s attributes as a place to live, work and invest. MIPIM is still 
the premier event of its kind, and it is felt that there is no real alternative to 
MIPIM at which the City Corporation’s City of London message would be as 
effectively disseminated, given the predominance of senior and influential 
property professionals attending MIPIM, and the amount of press attention that 
it receives. It is also felt that the City Corporation’s attendance is a key factor in 
promoting the Square Mile in the face of increasing competition from other 
centres and countries, and underpinning confidence in London as the leading 
global financial centre. 

19. MIPIM 2018 takes place from 13th-16th March and will provide similar 
opportunities as experienced at MIPIM 2017. The Policy & Resources 
Committee, Planning and Transportation Committee, and the Property 
Investment Board are now asked to decide if the City Corporation should attend 
MIPIM 2018.  

 

 

 

Contact: 
Simon McGinn, City Surveyors Department 
E:simon.mcginn@cityoflondon.gov.uk | 020 7332 1226 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Policy and Resources Committee  
Finance Committee 
Property Investment Board – For Information  

6 July 2017 
Urgency  
19 July 2017 

Subject: 
Beech Street Property Uses – update report 

Public 

Report of: 
City Surveyor and Headmistress of the City of London 
School for Girls 

For Decision 
 

Report author: 
Paul Wilkinson & Ena Harrop 

 
 

Summary 
 

In March 2017, your committee considered a report of the Town Clerk, City Surveyor 
& Managing Director, Barbican Centre setting out the strategic importance of Beech 
Street to the Cultural Hub. The Report asked Members to:- 

 

 Agree in principal the use of Exhibition Halls 1 and 2 for cultural and retail use 
which would align with the City’s adopted policies and strategies for the 
Cultural Hub;  

 Agree that the final decision on occupiers of the Exhibition Halls would be 
taken by the Policy and Resources Committee (in consultation with the 
Barbican Centre Board, the Cultural Hub Working Party and the Property 
Investment Board and Corporate Asset Sub Committee); and 

 Agree that Policy and Resources Committee become the spending committee 
to maintain an overview of the Beech Street Programme and ensure different 
strands deliver against the ambitions for a Cultural Hub. 

 
Recommendations 2 and 3 above were approved by the committee however a 
decision on recommendation 1 was deferred pending a joint report of the City 
Surveyor and the Headmistress of the City of London School for Girls. The 
committee requested that the report address:- 

 

 The CLSG ambitions for expansion of their Prep. Department 

 Possible alternative sites for its location inc. Beech Street; and 

 An assessment of the overall impact on the Cultural Hub. 
 

Significant progress in addressing these issues has been made, and a greater 
understanding of the issues has been achieved. However, following a meeting 
between the Barbican Centre, CLSG, City Surveyor and Town Clerk, it is 
recommended that further studies to provide the required evidence base are needed 
before any further consideration is given to the future proposals and occupancy of 
Exhibition Hall 2. This work is likely to take until the end of the 2017 and require 
additional resources. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



This report provides a brief update of the latest position and sets out a request for 
additional funding to explore options for the School and Cultural Hub in more detail.  
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
For Policy and Resources Committee: -  

 Note the current position; and 

 Note that a Gateway 3 project report requesting funding to progress the 
transformation of Beech Street will be brought forward at the earliest 
opportunity, using urgency procedures if required to ensure consideration of 
Exhibition Hall 2 occupancy doesn’t delay the wider project. 
 

For Finance Committee: -  
 

 Approve up to  £50k from the Finance Committee City’s Cash contingency, to 
allow the City of London School for Girls to explore the options identified, 
including Exhibition Hall 2, in greater detail; and 

 Approve up to £50k from the Finance Committee City Fund contingency, to 
enable the Barbican Centre on behalf of the Cultural Hub to explore in greater 
detail the potential use of Exhibition Hall 2 to align with aims and objectives of 
the Cultural Hub. 
 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 
 

1. In March 2017, your committee considered a report on the potential use of 
Exhibition Halls 1 and 2 for cultural and retail uses as part of the City of London 
Corporation’s plan to create a cultural hub in the North West of the Square Mile. 
The Cultural Hub Working Party subsequently endorsed this approach to the 
use of Exhibition Halls 1 and 2.  

 
2. A Member stated that whilst he supported the development of a cultural hub, the 

CLSG had ambitions to grow its’ Preparatory School Department and that 
Exhibition Hall 2 was the only viable option into which it could expand. A 
detailed discussion followed with views expressed in support of both strategic 
priorities – Education and Culture - and the Committee decided to defer a 
decision until the question of the CLSG expansion needs, including alternative 
sites and its impact on the cultural hub, had been addressed.  

 
 
Current Position 
 
3. Since your committee meeting in March, the CLSG and the City Surveyor have 

been working closely to evaluate a number of potential options for the School’s 
expansion, with the input of Nicholas Hare Architects.   
 

4. Preliminary work was also carried out on a potential use of Exhibition Hall 2 to 
align with the aims and objectives of the Cultural Hub, as envisaged in the Beech 

Page 12



Street Feasibility Study. This was carried out to inform Members request 
regarding the potential impact on the Hub of the School utilising the Exhibition 
Hall.  
 

5. Following the initial work exploring the School’s options a meeting took place 
between the Barbican Centre, City of London School for Girls, City Surveyor and 
Town Clerk. At that meeting it was acknowledged that whilst significant progress 
had been made into addressing Members concerns, further studies would be 
needed before further consideration to the future uses of Exhibition Hall 2 could 
be given. Those further studies would include business cases for the School and 
Cultural Hub options to provide a robust evidence base, within the framework of 
agreed Corporation policies and strategies regarding education and culture.  

 
Proposals 
6. It is proposed that the Finance Committee release up to £50k from their City’s 

Cash contingency to enable the School to explore in greater detail the potential 
options identified for their Preparatory Department expansion, including 
Exhibition Hall 2. 
 

7. It is further proposed that the Finance Committee release up to £50k from the 
City Fund contingency to enable the Cultural Hub to explore potential occupancy 
models for Exhibition Hall 2 in greater detail. 
 

8. A further meeting between Barbican Centre, City of London School for Girls, City 
Surveyor and Town Clerk will take place following the summer recess and the 
results of both exercises would be reported to Members no later than December 
2017.  
 

9. It is also proposed that the findings of the Beech Street Feasibility Study, carried 
out in 2016, be taken forward via a Gateway 3 report at the earliest possible 
opportunity. This will enable the overall transformation of the street, in particular 
the lighting, highway and public realm, to continue without delay. This is 
particularly important as the necessary traffic modelling studies are likely to take 
at least 12 months to complete. 

 
Financial Implications 
10. The additional works will be funded from Finance Committee contingency, 

subject to their agreement.  The funds will need to be drawn from the City’s Cash 
contingency for the School and City Fund contingency for the Barbican Centre.  

 
Conclusion 
11. In March 2017, Members deferred in-principle approval of the use of Barbican 

Exhibition Halls for cultural and retail use pending further information detailing 
how the CLSG expansion ambitions could be addressed. A number of options 
have now been identified for the CLSG expansion around their existing campus, 
in addition to any options utilising Exhibition Hall 2. These options require 
additional work before any decision can be taken on the future occupancy of 
Exhibition Hall 2. The proposals set out within this report would enable the School 
and Cultural Hub to explore their respective options and avoid further delay with 
the overall transformation of Beech Street.  

Page 13



 
 
Background Papers 
 
Beech Street – property usage Report – Policy & Resources Committee, March 2017  
 
Paul Wilkinson  
City Surveyor  
T: 0207 332 1502 
E: paul.wilkinson@cityoflondon.gov.uk  
 
Alan Bubbear  
Bursar – CLSG. 
T: 0207 847 5524 
Bursar@clsg.org.uk  
 

Page 14

mailto:paul.wilkinson@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:Bursar@clsg.org.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 24
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 MIPIM Property Conference 2017
	5 Beech Street Property Uses - Update Report
	9 Non-Public Minutes
	10 Crossrail Subsoil Acquisitions - All Estates Excluding Barbican
	crossrail subsoil acquisitions schedule 04072017

	11 City Surveyor Revenue Outturn Report 2016-17
	12 Vacant Accommodation Update as at 1 June 2017
	13 Quarterly Delegated Authorities Update -  1st April 2017 to 30th June 2017 - City Fund, City's Estate & Bridge House Estates
	14 City Fund, City's Estate and Bridge House Estates - Performance Monitoring to 31 March 2017
	15 City Fund and Bridge House Estates - Finsbury Circus: Crossrail Issue Report
	Appendix 1 Finsbury Circus subterranean infrastructure

	16 Project Management Event - Key themes for Organisational Action
	17 Report of Action Taken Between Meetings
	19 123/124 New Bond Street- Redevelopment behind a retained façade (City's Estate)
	20 City's Estate - Rent Review Report - Whole 16-24 Brewery Road, N7 Rent Review - 25th March 2016
	22 City Fund Letting Report - Lease Renewal, 4th Floor, 15/17 Eldon Street EC2M
	23 City Fund Letting Report - Lease Renewal, 26-27 Leadenhall Market EC3 - Reiss Limited
	24 Bridge House Estates - 21 Lime Street - Purchase of Freehold Development Site: Confirmation of Final Price
	25 Bridge House Estates - Letting report Part 3rd floor, Building 3 & 4, 1-5 London Wall Buildings EC2

